Public Document Pack

County Offices
Newland
Lincoln
LN1 1YL
18 June 2018
Lincolnshire Schools' Forum
A meeting of the Lincolnshire Schools' Forum will be held on Tuesday, 26 June 2018
at 1.00 pm in Committee Room One, County Offices, Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL
for the transaction of the business set out on the attached Agenda.
Yours sincerely

Richard Wills
Head of Paid Service
Membership of the Lincolnshire Schools' Forum
SCHOOLS' MEMBERS
Nursery (1)
Joanne Noble (Head Teacher, Gainsborough Nursery School)
Special (2)
Steve Barnes (The Pilgrim School, Lincoln)
Nigel Sisley JP (Governor, St Francis Community Special School, Lincoln)
Primary Maintained (7)
Primary Head Teachers (4)
Gavin Booth (Head Teacher, Boston St Thomas' C E Primary School) CHAIRMAN
Martin Kyle (Head Teacher, St Faith & St Martin C E Junior School, Lincoln
Ian Randall (Head Teacher, Reepham C E Primary School)
1 vacancy
Primary Governors (3)
Marilyn Bell (Governor, The Fenland Federation)
Anthony Stevens (Governor, The Holt Primary School, Skellingthorpe)
James Todd (Governor, Woodlands Infant and Nursery School, Lincoln)

Secondary Maintained (1)
Michele Anderson (Head Teacher, Spalding High School)
Academies (11)
Secondary Academies (7)
David Bennett (Governor, Queen Elizabeth's Grammar School, Horncastle)
Professor Ken Durrands CBE (Governor, The King's School, Grantham)
Caroline Saxelby (Head Teacher, Walton Girls' High School and Sixth Form, Grantham)
David Scott (Head Teacher, Kesteven & Grantham Girls' School, Grantham)
Ian Widdows (Head Teacher, Giles Academy, Old Leake)
Mark Woods (Chief Executive Officer, Stamford Welland Academy)
1 vacancy
Primary Academies (4)
Mark Anderson (Primary Academies)
Helen Hilton (Head Teacher, Little Gonerby Church of England Infant School)
2 vacancies
Special Academy (1)
Lea Mason (Executive Head Teacher, Lincolnshire Wolds Federation, Louth)
Alternative Provision Academy (1)
Josh Greaves (Chief Operating Officer, Wellspring Academy Trust)

NON-SCHOOLS' MEMBERS
Faith Groups (1)
Bridget Starling (Church of England)
Providers of 16 to 19 Education (1)
Martin Shelton (Linkage Community Trust)
Staff Trade Unions (1)
Helen Stokes (UNISON)
Early Years Providers (1)
Julia Merivale (Trinity Day Nursery, Gainsborough)

LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS' FORUM AGENDA
TUESDAY, 26 JUNE 2018
Item

Title

Pages

1

Election of Chairman

2

Election of Vice-Chairman

3

Apologies for Absence/Replacement Members

4

Declarations of Members' Interest

5

Minutes of the Lincolnshire Schools Forum meeting held on
19 April 2018

6

Chairman's Announcements

7

Section 251 Budget Statement 2018/19
(To receive a report from Elizabeth Bowes, Strategic Finance
Manager, Schools Finance Team, which provides the Schools'
Forum with a copy of the Section 251 budget statement for the
2018/19 financial year)

13 - 20

8

De-delegation of Maintained Primary School Budgets 2019/20
& 2020/21
(To receive a report from Mark Popplewell, Head of Finance,
Children's Services, which seeks approval from the maintained
primary school representatives' of the Schools' Forum to the
Local Authority's (LA) proposals for de-delegation of certain
budgets in 2019/20 and 2020/21)

21 - 32

9

Corporate Support Service Programme
(To receive a presentation from Andrew McLean, Children's
Service Manager, Commissioning, which provides the Schools'
Forum with an update on the developments of the Corporate
Support Services review (currently delivered by Serco) and to
engage the Forum on their views for how best to keep the Forum
and Lincolnshire Schools informed and engaged on the process)

Verbal
Report

10

Schools Outreach Services Update
(To receive a joint report from Mary Meredith, Children's Services
Manager, Inclusion, Jonas Gibson, Commissioning &
Development Manager and Kate Capel, Children's SEND Locality
Manager, which provides the Schools' Forum with an update on
the three strands of Lincolnshire's School Outreach Offer; The
Behaviour Outreach Support Service (BOSS), the Autism and
Learning Difficulties (ALD) Outreach Service and the Physical
Disabilities (PD) Outreach Service

33 - 46

5 - 12

11

Academies and Trust Update
(To receive a report from John O'Connor, Children's Service
Manager, Education Support, which provides the Schools' Forum
with information on the latest number of academies, and pupils in
academies)

47 - 50

12

Lincolnshire Schools' Forum - Work Programme
(This item provides the Schools' Forum with an opportunity to
discuss potential items for future meetings for inclusion in the
Work Programme)

51 - 52

13

Future Meeting Dates
(For the Schools' Forum to agree the following meeting dates:Thurs 24 January 2019;
Thurs 18 April 2019;
Thurs 20 June 2019; and
Thurs 10 October 2019.
All meetings to be held at County Offices; and to commence at
1.00pm)

Democratic Services Officer Contact Details
Name:

Katrina Cope

Direct Dial

01522 552104

E Mail Address

katrina.cope@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Please note: for more information about any of the following please contact
the Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting




Business of the meeting
Any special arrangements
Copies of reports

Contact details set out above.
All papers for council meetings are available on:
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords

Agenda Item 5
1

LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS' FORUM
19 APRIL 2018
PRESENT: GAVIN BOOTH (CHAIRMAN)
Joanne Noble (Headteacher, Gainsborough Nursery School), Anthony Stevens
(Governor, The Holt Primary School, Skellingthorpe), Ian Randall (Head Teacher,
Reepham Church of England Primary School), Michele Anderson (Head Teacher,
Spalding High School), Professor Ken Durrands CBE (Governor, The King's School,
Grantham), Ian Widdows (Head Teacher, Giles Academy, Old Leake), Mark
Anderson, Caroline Saxelby (Head Teacher, Walton Girls' High School and Sixth
Form), Helen Hilton (Head Teacher, Little Gonerby Church of England Infant School),
David Scott (Head Teacher, Kesteven and Grantham Girls' School), Lea Mason
(Executive Head Teacher, Lincolnshire Wolds Federation, Louth), Josh Greaves
(Chief Operating Officer, Wellspring Academy Trust), Mark Woods (Chief Executive
Officer, Stamford Welland Academy) and Helen Stokes (Branch Secretary, UNISON).
Officers in attendance:Michelle Andrews (Service Manager Early Years and Childcare Support), Elizabeth
Bowes (Strategic Finance Manager, Schools Finance Team), Katrina Cope (Senior
Democratic Services Officer), Sheridan Dodsworth (Children's Services Manager responsibility for SEND), Mark Popplewell (Head of Finance (Children's Services)),
Heather Sandy (Chief Commissioning Officer for Learning), Tony Warnock
(Operations and Financial Advice Manager), Paula Whitehead (Manager, Team
Around the Child) and Sue Williams (Children's Services Manager, Education
Strategy).
44

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS

Apologies for absence were received from Marilyn Bell (Governor, The Fenland
Federation), Martin J Kyle (Head Teacher, St Faiths & St Martin C E Junior School,
Lincoln), Julia Merivale (Early Years Providers), Martin Shelton (Linkage Community
Trust), Nigel Sisley JP (Governor, St Francis Community Special School, Lincoln),
Bridget Starling (Church of England) and James Todd (Governor, Woodlands Infant
and Nursery School, Lincoln).
45

DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS

There were no declarations of members interest made at this stage of proceedings.
46

MINUTES OF THE LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS'FORUM MEETING HELD
ON 18 JANUARY 2018

RESOLVED

Page 5

2
LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS' FORUM
19 APRIL 2018
That the minutes of the Lincolnshire Schools Forum meeting held on 18
January 2018 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record,
subject to the last bullet point on page 9 being substituted with the wording
detailed below:
'No specific sites had been identified as yet. There was going to be one
satellite site in each quadrant to start off with. Areas currently being looked at
were Sleaford and Skegness due to having no special schools nearby. The
impacts on mainstream schools would be looked at in due course.'
47

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

There was no Chairman's Announcements made at the meeting.
48

ANALYSIS OF THE IMPACT OF THE NATIONAL FUNDING FORMULA

Consideration was given to a report from Elizabeth Bowes, Strategic Finance
Manager, Schools Finance Team, which provided the Forum with an analysis of the
impact of the implementation of the national funding formula (NFF) for primary and
secondary maintained schools and academies in 2018/19.
The Forum was advised that the Local Authority (LA) had on 23 January 2018,
submitted the DfE's Authority Proforma Tool for mainstream schools for 2018/19,
using October 2017 pupil census data. It was noted that the DfE had approved
Lincolnshire's 2018/19 funding formula in accordance with the DfE's Finance
Regulations on 8 February 2018. It was noted further that budgets for both primary
and secondary schools had been published on 28 February 2018.
Analysis of the impact of the implementation of the NFF was detailed on the top of
page 12 of the report, and Tables A to D provided the following analysis:



Tables A and B – detailed the impact of the NFF for the primary and
secondary sector (respectively) based on a 0% Minimum Funding Guarantee
(MFG), 0.5% funding floor, the maximum of either 3% ceiling cap or 20% of
their remaining gains, and minimum funding levels. It was highlighted that
Tables A and B detailed the impact of the NFF that was implemented for
Lincolnshire schools in 2018/19; and
Tables C and D – detailed the impact of the NFF for the primary and
secondary sector if hypothetically the NFF was implemented in full with no
ceiling cap and MFG. The Forum noted that the variations in funding levels
across the country had inevitably resulted in winners and losers as a result of
the formula. It was highlighted that to protect schools from significant budget
reductions, the MFG ensured that no school lost more than a certain
percentage per pupil compared to its previous years per pupil budget.

In conclusion, the Forum was advised that the introduction of the NFF had been
positive for the majority of Lincolnshire schools.

Page 6

3
LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS' FORUM
19 APRIL 2018

The report also highlighted that the LA was also contributing to the DfE's work on the
introduction of a formulaic factor for mobility and growth.
During discussion, it was highlighted that smaller schools were more vulnerable, as a
result of a large proportion of funding being directed through pupil led factors.
Officers confirmed that rurality was a big challenge for Lincolnshire, but overall, it was
highlighted that Lincolnshire schools had gained by c.£14m overall, as a result the
implementation of the NFF.
RESOLVED
That the report on the analysis of the impact of the National Funding Formula
be noted.
49

ANNUAL REPORT ON SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND
DISABILITIES (SEND)

Consideration was given to a report from Sheridan Dodsworth, Children's Services
Manager, Special Educational Needs and Disabilities, which provided the Forum with
an annual update on Special Educational Needs and Disabilities, as required by the
Schools Forum Regulations.
The report provided the Forum with an update on activity within the county; an
overview of the high needs costs throughout 2017/18; an update on the SEND
Strategy Review; and an introduction to the SEND Tribunal Single Route of Redress.
In guiding the Forum through the report, the Children's Services Manager, Special
Educational Needs and Disabilities made reference to:






The National Context – It was highlighted nationally that 14.4% of pupils with
in receipt of some form of provision with SEND compared to Lincolnshire's
percentage of 15.9% of the total pupil population;
The context in Lincolnshire – The report highlighted that in January 2018,
there had been a 16% increase in the number of young people with a
statement of EHC Plan from January 2017, and a 38% increase overall since
the implementation of the SEND reforms in September 2014, when there had
been 3,300 Statements of SEN. It was highlighted that there were now 4,560
children and young people with EHC plans. Further information relating to the
Lincolnshire position were shown on pages 19 and 20 of the report presented;
It was highlighted that SEND remained more prevalent in boys than girls. In
Lincolnshire 16.3% of boys were on SEN support, compared to 9.7% of girls;
The Forum was advised that Lincolnshire was consistent with the national
trend of Moderate Learning Difficulties as the most commonly identified
primary need overall. It was highlighted that Lincolnshire's Autistic Spectrum
Disorder was now also the most commonly identified primary need for pupil's
with an EHC plan. Information relating to the number of pupils with SEN
support or a statement/EHC plan by District was shown on page 22 of the
report;

Page 7

4
LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS' FORUM
19 APRIL 2018












Schools' Funding for pupils with SEND – It was reported that schools and
academies continued to have through its delegated budget shares, a notional
SEN funding allocation and that they were expected to contribute the first
£6,000 towards a pupil who required SEN Support/Graduated Approach. It
was highlighted that higher level needs (top up funding) and targeted support
provision remained outside of this notional SEN funding and that this was
funded through the High Needs budget of the Dedicated Schools Grant. A
table on page 23 provided the Forum with information relating to High Needs
Funding. It was highlighted further that there continued to be a material
growth in high needs costs being allocated to mainstream schools through top
up and targeted funding; and that the latter was being reviewed as a result of
the national funding formula being implemented;
Education, Health and Care Needs Assessments – It was reported that in
2017 the Special Educational Needs and Disability Service had received 695
requests for assessments. This figure had increased by 15% from 2016. It
was reported that the SEND Service issued 95% of new EHC plans within the
statutory timescale of 20 weeks. It was reported further that in 2017, the
service had made a decision not to undertake a statutory assessment under
S36 of the Children and Families Act 2014 in 27% of cases referred (187). It
was highlighted that the England average for 'refusal to assess' decisions was
around 28%. The Forum was advised that Lincolnshire was 1% below the
national average. The Forum was advised further that in 2017 the most
common reason for refusal to assess continued to be the lack of evidence;
Appeals to First Tier Tribunals – It was reported that in Lincolnshire there had
been a significant rise in the number of appeals lodged with the SEND
Tribunal from the first year of the SEND reforms in 2014/15. The Forum was
advised that in the academic year 2016/17, 45 appeals had been lodged with
the First Tier Tribunal; and that this was a reduction, and equated to 4.25%
per 10,000 school population. The Forum was advised further that evidence
for this academic year had indicated that far more cases were being resolved
through case management. In the first four months of 2017/18 academic year,
16 appeals had been lodged. It was highlighted the service had been greatly
assisted by the partnership working with the Lincolnshire Parent Carer Forum;
Special Schools – It was reported that following a comprehensive review of
Special Schools' pupil banding, the Local Authority had worked with Special
School Leaders to review the Special Schools' funding formula with changes
taking effect from April 2018 for 2018/19 following Executive Councillor
approval. It was noted that Special Schools funding had risen by £1.954m
from 2017/18 to £27.731m as a result of the special schools funding formula
agreed changes and place number review;
Hospital Schools – It was noted that Lincolnshire had two hospital schools and
that the Local Authority had commissioned 13 and 70 places retrospectively in
2017/18. It was noted further that the authority would commission the same
number of placements for 2018/19;
Out of County Placements – It was highlighted that Out of County placements
were only made when Lincolnshire schools had stated that they could not
meet the special educational needs of a particular learner, or when all schools
were full. It was highlighted further that Out of County placements had reduced

Page 8

5
LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS' FORUM
19 APRIL 2018




over the last three years, at one point there had been 98 pupils in out of
county provision, and that now there were 88. The Forum however noted that
costs had significantly risen, and for 2017/18, latest information was
forecasting a provisional figure of £8.048m;
Independent School placement in Lincolnshire – It was highlighted that in
addition to Out of County placements there were currently 42 children and
young people place in independent schools in Lincolnshire; and
Reference was also made to the Building Communities of Specialist Provision:
A Collaborative Strategy for Children and Young People with Special
Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) in Lincolnshire. The Forum was
advised that this had been a collaborative process over the last two years and
that the strategy had gone to public consultation for nine weeks from 8
January 2018 to 14 March 2018.

In conclusion, the Forum was advised that there was an increasing number of young
people aged 0 – 25 who required a higher level of support with their additional needs,
which was an associated cost pressure for the High Needs Block of the Dedicated
Schools Grant. It was highlighted that it was hoped that the proposed Strategy for
Special Schools in Lincolnshire would address the capacity issues; and the inequality
faced by young people with additional needs who currently travelled great distances
within the county.
During discussion, the Forum raised the following issues:







The time period for parents when an EHC plan, was refused. The Forum was
advised that a further representation was able to be made every six months;
The need for the Local Authority to manage the High Needs pressures. The
Forum was advised that lobbying was taking place nationally regarding this
matter due to the pressures being flagged by many Local Authorities;
The implications for providing mediation – It was reported that this had been a
challenge as more staff had been employed; but it was highlighted that
rewards were being seen as staff had grown in confidence. It was the felt that
it had been the right thing to do for the family and for everyone involved in the
process;
The Forum was advised that the number of Electively Home Educated SEN
pupils had reduced by 1 over the last year. It was noted that there was also
young people receiving home tuition, which was different and was short-term.
Parents of home tutored SEN pupils were happy with their arrangements; but
it was highlighted that these pupils would be in special schools if there had
been enough places; and
Further information was requested regarding those cases not assessed.

RESOLVED
That the Annual Report on Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND)
be noted.
50

ANNUAL REPORT ON EARLY YEARS

Page 9

6
LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS' FORUM
19 APRIL 2018
The Forum received a report from Michelle Andrews, Children's Services Manager,
Early Years, which provided the Forum with the Annual Report for Early Years and
information on the delivery and performance of Early Years and Childcare across
Lincolnshire.
In guiding the Forum through the report the Children's Services Manager, Early
Years, reference was made to:
 The six key areas of responsibility for Early Years and Childcare Support;
 The Early Years Entitlements for 2, 3 & 4 year olds. The Forum was advised
that all three and four year olds were entitled to 15 hours a week of free early
learning. It was reported that take up for this entitlement was currently at 95%
nationally and 97% in Lincolnshire;
 Two Year Old Early Education Entitlement – It was highlighted that
Lincolnshire had seen a decrease in the number of children potentially eligible
based on lists produced by the Department of Work and Pensions. In
Lincolnshire as at January 2018, the take up had been was at 72.5% with
1,925 children accessing a funded place. The take up nationally was 71%.
The Forum was advised that there were currently 571 providers registered to
deliver two year old places in Lincolnshire and these consisted of 28 schools
and 261 childminders;
 Early Years Pupil Premium – It was reported that Early Years Premium was
additional funding for Providers to improve the education they provided for
disadvantaged three and four year olds. It was highlighted that providers
could receive up to £302 a year for each eligible child, which equated to an
hourly rate of 53p per child per hour;
 Disability Access Funding – The Forum was advised that for 2017/18 a total of
111 children had qualified for disability access funding in Lincolnshire. The
Local Authority continued to encourage Providers to seek parent's permission
to check eligibility for this additional funding to maximise take-up;
 30 Hours Entitlement – The Forum were reminded that from September 2017
the extended entitlement to 30 hours free provision had been introduced, an
additional 15 hours a week for working parents of three and four year olds. It
was reported that the spring term 2018, 4,671 eligibility codes had been
issued to children in Lincolnshire. It was highlighted that currently 83% of
childcare providers in Lincolnshire were offering the extended 30 hours
entitlement. It was highlighted further that Lincolnshire had submitted six
capital bids to the DfE for a combination of new builds, premises extensions
and refurbishment projects to help build capacity to meet the demand. The
Forum was advised that these projects had yielded £1,594,138 of capital
funding and as a result would create 259 new 30 hour places across the
county;
 Childcare Sufficiency – The Forum was advised that Providers had been
supported to review their capacity to meet the 30 hours demand. There
continued to be a significant increase in the number of newly registered
Providers opening up around the county each year. In addition to this there
had also been an increase in the number of schools introducing Early Years
Provision;

Page 10

7
LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS' FORUM
19 APRIL 2018

 Quality Provision/Educational Outcomes (EYFS) – The Forum was advised
that the Early Years Foundation Stage Profiles for 2017 had shown that
69.6% of children in Lincolnshire had achieved a Good Level of Development
0.9% lower than the national average of 70.5%. Further details relating to the
EYFS were shown on pages 40/41 of the report;
 Quality of Providers Judged by Ofsted – It was reported that 95% of Early
Years and Childcare providers in Lincolnshire had achieved a Good or
Outstanding Judgement 2% higher than the national average;
 Workforce and Professional Development – The Forum was advised that the
EYCC continued to support the development of the early years & childcare
workforce across Lincolnshire. Details of the training and development
opportunities for the sector were shown on pages 42/43 of the report;
 Inclusion and Early Intervention – It was noted that inclusion support was now
embedded with the Early Years Locality Teams; and that the Early Years
Inclusion Fund continued to enable early year's providers to enhance support
for children with SEND. The Forum was advised that information relating to
the pilot process for Inclusion Funding being carried out in Lincolnshire would
be the subject of a future report for the Forum's consideration;
 Partnership Working – The report highlighted that EYCC was committed to
working in partnership with locality teams and other agencies across
Lincolnshire to raise educational outcomes for young children; and
 EYCC Priorities for 2018/19 – The Forum were asked to support the 2018/19
priorities; and core business proposals as detailed on page 47 of the report.
RESOLVED
1. That the Annual Report for Early Years be noted.
2. That the priorities for Early Years and Childcare for 2018/19 as detailed on
page 47 of the report be received.
51

TEAM AROUND THE CHILD (TAC)

Consideration was given to a report from Paula Whitehead, Team Manager, Team
Around the Child (TAC), Young Carers and Troubled Families, which provided the
Forum with an update on Team Around the Child in Lincolnshire.
It was reported that as at 31 March 2018, there were 2,047 TACs open across the
county, of these 879 were led by primary schools, and 473 by secondary schools and
106 by Special Schools.
It was highlighted that positive responses had been received on the services
provided by the TAC Team. It was highlighted that the most significant development
within the last year had been the increased use of the Signs of Safety methodology
within TAC; and this had increased the effectiveness of TACs.
Details of the priorities for the coming year were shown in the report represented.

Page 11

8
LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS' FORUM
19 APRIL 2018
The Committee were asked if they wished to receive ongoing direct reports, or just
the detailed Annual Reports for information.
RESOLVED
1. That the Team Around the Child report presented be noted.
2. That the Team Around the Child Annual Report be received by the Forum
for information only going forward.
52

ACADEMIES AND TRUST UPDATE

The Head of Finance, Children's Services presented the Academies and Trust
update report, which provided information on the latest number of academies, pupils
in academies and academy trusts.
It was highlighted that since the effective date of the last report (1 December 2017),
there had been four academy conversions of primary schools, which brought the total
number of primary academies to 87 (31.1%) and the total number of pupils attending
primary academies to 23,289 (40.6%).
It was reported that the total number of academies was now 154 (42.5%) educating
67,504 pupils (63.9%). Information relating to the projected six month status of all
Lincolnshire State Schools was provided within the report presented.
The report also provided a list of the academy trusts that currently had the greatest
number of academies in Lincolnshire.
RESOLVED
That the Academies and Trust Update be noted.
53

LINCOLNSHIRE SCHOOLS' FORUM WORK PROGRAMME

The Forum gave consideration to its work programme.
RESOLVED
That the work programme presented be noted.
The meeting closed at 2.20 pm

Page 12

Agenda Item 7

Regulatory and Other Committee
Open Report on behalf of Debbie Barnes OBE, Executive Director Children's
Services
Report to:

Lincolnshire Schools' Forum

Date:

26 June 2018

Subject:
Decision
Reference:
Key
decision?
Summary:

Section 251 Budget Statement 2018/19
No

The purpose of this report is to provide Schools Forum with a copy of the s.251
budget statement for the 2018/19 financial year.

Recommendation(s):
The Schools Forum is asked to note the content of the report.

Background
Local Authorities (LA) are required under s.251 of the Apprenticeship, Skills, Children and
Learning Act 2009 to prepare and submit an education and children’s social care budget
statement for the relevant period to the Secretary of State for Education by 30 April each
year. The s.251 return is intended to provide a clear picture of the LA’s planned spending
on its schools budget, de-delegated items, high needs budget, early years budget, central
provision within the schools budget and children’s and young people’s services.
The LA’s s.251 budget statement, and the DfE’s benchmarking data that will be published
later in the year, this should assist the Schools Forum’s consideration of budget levels and
the balance of funding between early years, primary, secondary and special schools.
The information for 2018/19 was submitted to the DfE via its data collection and
management system for education (COLLECT). As is customary, the DfE will carry out a
number of checks on it. However, to ensure compliance with the statutory requirements,
the LA has published the Early Years report, the LA Table report and the Schools Table
report in the ‘Downloads’ section of LCC’s website at:
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/parents/schools/for-schools/schools-financialinformation/s251/131970.article
This means that details are available to all maintained schools and academies; private,
voluntary and independent providers that are funded to provide free early years provision
to two, three and four year olds. The documents will be refreshed should the DfE require
any amendments to the LA’s statement.
The overall Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) funding is considered when the LA completes
its annual detailed budget setting exercise. For 2018/19 the DSG now consists of four

Page 13

blocks – Schools Block, Central Schools Services Block (CSSB), High Needs Block and
Early Years Block, each of these blocks have been determined by a separate national
funding formula. The Schools Block is ring-fenced and LA's are only able to transfer 0.5%
of their Schools Block funding to an alternative block with the agreement of their Schools
Forum following consultation with all schools and academies. Movements of budget from
the CSSB to the Schools Block, or from the High Needs Block to any other block are not
subject to any limit, and can be made in consultation with Schools Forum.
Attached to this report is a copy of Table 1 – LA level information. This provides an overall
picture of the funding being allocated direct to schools and high needs delegations, the
amount being spent on education centrally and children’s social care. The Table 1
reporting format has however not changed following the creation of the distinct DSG
funding blocks.
The 2018/19 DfE changes create limitations in movement of funding between blocks to
respond to arising cost pressures. There are a number of budgets that are difficult to
estimate and control due to the demand-led nature of the services supported through the
DSG High Needs Block in particular, (e.g. top up funding for Education Health Care (EHC)
plans for mainstream pupils, special school pupil placements, out of county placements,
and meeting the education needs for pupils through alternative provision placements),
therefore this does create a potential future financial risk to the affordability of the High
Need Block in light of these changes.
In 2018/19, Lincolnshire has received c.£5.2m of protection funding following the
implementation of the new High Needs national funding formula to provide stability against
the prior year funding level. For 2019/20, the High Needs Block is planned to increase by
0.5% (or £0.374m). The limited financial growth planned is not aligned to local data,
therefore the LA will continue to undertake detailed monitoring and trend analysis to
ensure affordability of the High Needs Block. It is a pressure for LAs across the country.
Funding levels post 2019/20 are subject to the government's next spending review.
Following a review of the historical commitments within the CSSB in 2017/18, the LA was
able to identify savings of £0.250m relating to Schools Broadband for 2018/19. These
savings were transferred to the Schools Block to fund: the Primary Schools Rents factor;
the implementation of the national funding formula, and the Growth Fund to enable the LA
to fulfil its strategic and statutory responsibilities to provide sufficient school places for
pupils in Lincolnshire. Members of the Schools Forum agreed to this transfer in the
January 2018 Schools Forum Meeting.
The LA will present a report on the s.251 benchmarking data later in the year, following
publication of LAs’ data by the DfE.

Consultation
a) Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out??
No

b) Risks and Impact Analysis

Page 14

n/a

Appendices
These are listed below and attached at the back of the report
Appendix A
The LA's s.251 Table 1 data for 2018/19.

Background Papers

Document title
Schools
Funding
arrangements
2018/19

Where the document can be viewed
http://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=166&
MId=5160&Ver=4

This report was written by Lizzie Bowes, who can be contacted on 01522 554905
or elizabeth.bowes@lincolnshire.gov.uk.

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

LA Table: FUNDING PERIOD (2018-19)
Department for Education Section 251 Financial Data Collection
Report produced on 15/05/2018 17:19:23
Local Authority 925 Lincolnshire
Description

Early Years

Primary

AP/
PRUs

Post
School

Gross

Income

Net

215834716.00

194445796.00

.00

.00

448589028.00

448589028.00

1.0.2 High needs place funding
within Individual Schools Budget
(i.e. within school budget shares,
before Academy recoupment),
including all pre- and post-16
place funding for maintained
schools and academies

.00

.00

18480834.00

540000.00

19020834.00

19020834.00

1.1.1 Contingencies
1.1.2 Behaviour support services

543966.00
.00

.00
.00

543966.00
.00

.00
.00

543966.00
.00

1.1.3 Support to UPEG and
bilingual learners
1.1.4 Free school meals eligibility

240617.00

.00

240617.00

51268.00

189349.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

1.1.5 Insurance
1.1.6 Museum and Library
services
1.1.7 Licences/subscriptions
1.1.8 Staff costs – supply cover
excluding cover for facility time
1.1.9 Staff costs – supply cover
for facility time
1.1.10 School improvement
1.2.1 Top-up funding –
maintained schools
1.2.2 Top-up funding –
academies, free schools and
colleges
1.2.3 Top-up and other funding –
non-maintained and independent
providers
1.2.4 Additional high needs
targeted funding for mainstream
schools and academies
1.2.5 SEN support service
1.2.6 Hospital education services

.00
.00

.00
.00

.00
.00

.00
.00

.00
.00

.00
.00

.00
.00

.00
.00

.00
.00

.00
.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

6302.00

.00
5657478.00

.00
885833.00

3835421.00

1554140.00

.00
11939174.00

.00
.00

.00
11939174.00

.00

2650729.00

4510254.00

8987654.00

4916000.00

2588688.00

23653325.00

.00

23653325.00

128489.00

449711.00

578201.00

8822030.00

.00

266552.00

10244983.00

.00

10244983.00

.00

2219545.00

906575.00

3126120.00

.00

3126120.00

2233841.00

674795.00

732081.00

252763.00
1151415.00

14717.00
30000.00

55537.00

3963734.00
1181415.00

78833.00
.00

3884901.00
1181415.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

1791935.00

1791935.00

28204.00

1763731.00

309367.00

2490169.00

2175201.00

592201.00
.00

561586.00
.00

158339.00

6286863.00
.00

5936.00
.00

6280927.00
.00

909110.00

.00

.00

909110.00

.00

909110.00

.00

.00

17000.00

170000.00

.00

170000.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

2270726.00

.00

2270726.00

1.0.1 Individual Schools Budget
(i.e. school budget shares, before
Academy recoupment), including
6th form grant for maintained
schools, but excluding all high
needs place funding

1.2.7 Other alternative provision
services
1.2.8 Support for inclusion
1.2.9 Special schools and PRUs
in financial difficulty
1.2.10 PFI/ BSF costs at special
schools, AP/ PRUs and Post 16
institutions only
1.2.11 Direct payments (SEN
and disability)
1.2.12 Carbon reduction
commitment allowances (PRUs)
1.2.13 Therapies and other
health related services
1.3.1 Central expenditure on
early years entitlement
1.4.1 Contribution to combined
budgets
1.4.2 School admissions
1.4.3 Servicing of schools forums

38308516.00

SEN/
Special
Schools

Secondary

17000.00

59500.00

76500.00

.00
.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

2270726.00
11471.00

1032907.00

267741.00

37381.00

.00

1349500.00

.00

1349500.00

.00
278.00

346759.00
15500.00

283711.00
3056.00

.00
1166.00

.00
.00

630470.00
20000.00

4616.00
.00

625854.00
20000.00

1.4.4 Termination of employment
costs
1.4.5 Falling Rolls Fund
1.4.6 Capital expenditure from
revenue (CERA)
1.4.7 Prudential borrowing costs

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00
.00

.00
6180.00

.00
.00

.00
.00

.00
2861028.00

.00
2867208.00

.00
1687208.00

.00
1180000.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

1.4.8 Fees to independent
schools without SEN
1.4.9 Equal pay - back pay
1.4.10 Pupil growth
1.4.11 SEN transport
1.4.12 Exceptions agreed by
Secretary of State
1.4.13 Infant class sizes
1.4.14 Other Items
1.5.1 Education welfare service
1.5.2 Asset management
1.5.3 Statutory/ Regulatory duties

.00

.00

62632.00

.00

.00

62632.00

.00

62632.00

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
2064135.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00

.00
2064135.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
2064135.00
.00
.00

7719.00

.00
430383.00

84855.00

32376.00

.00

.00

.00
555333.00
628068.00
590941.00
816734.00

.00
.00
77360.00
.00
264238.00

.00
555333.00
550708.00
590941.00
552496.00

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00

1.6.1 Central support services
1.6.2 Education welfare service
1.6.3 Asset Management
1.6.4 Statutory/ Regulatory duties

Page 17

1.6.5 Premature retirement cost/
Redundancy costs (new
provisions)
1.6.6 Monitoring national
curriculum assessment
1.7.1 Other Specific Grants
1.8.1 TOTAL SCHOOLS
BUDGET (before Academy
recoupment)
1.9.1 Estimated Dedicated
Schools Grant for 2018-19 (after
deductions for post school high
needs place funding, but
including school and academy
post-16 high needs place
funding)

.00
43293709.00

.00
234717090.00

.00
205012436.00

.00
43102351.00

.00
10477471.00

.00
4878051.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00
543516851.00

.00
2197663.00

.00
541319188.00

2846953.00
.00
1037941.00
.00

2511212.00
.00
2859.00
.00

335741.00
.00
1035082.00
.00

4258.00

.00

4258.00

.00

.00

.00

177547.00

67.00

177480.00

1804746.00

346297.00

1458449.00

2247364.00

281685.00

1965679.00

331131.00

7163.00

323968.00

537957436.00

.00

1.9.2 Dedicated Schools Grant
brought forward from 2017-18
1.9.3 Dedicated Schools Grant
carry forward to 2019-20
1.9.4 ESFA Sixth Form Grant for
maintained school 6th forms
(including post-16 high needs
place funding)
1.9.5 Local Authority additional
contribution
1.9.6 Total funding supporting
the Schools Budget (lines 1.9.1
to 1.9.5)
1.10.1 Academy: recoupment
from the Dedicated Schools
Grant, excluding the recoupment
of high needs place funding
shown in line 1.0.2 above (please
show any recoupment from the
DSG as a negative in the cell)

.00
1561752.00

.00
539519188.00

(263441690.00)

(13605661.00)

1.10.2 Academy: recoupment
from the Dedicated Schools
Grant of high needs place
funding shown under line 1.0.2
above (please show any
recoupment from the DSG as a
negative in the cell)
2.0.1 Central support services
2.0.2 Education welfare service
2.0.3 School improvement
2.0.4 Asset management education
2.0.5 Statutory/ Regulatory duties
- education
2.0.6 Premature retirement cost/
Redundancy costs (new
provisions)
2.0.7 Monitoring national
curriculum assessment
2.1.1 Educational psychology
service
2.1.2 SEN administration,
assessment and coordination
and monitoring
2.1.3 Independent Advice and
Support Services (Parent
partnership), guidance and
information
2.1.4 Home to school transport
(pre 16): SEN transport
expenditure
2.1.5 Home to school transport
(pre 16): mainstream home to
school transport expenditure
2.1.6 Home to post-16 provision:
SEN/ LLDD transport
expenditure (aged 16-18)
2.1.7 Home to post-16 provision:
SEN/ LLDD transport
expenditure (aged 19-25)
2.1.8 Home to post-16 provision
transport: mainstream home to
post-16 transport expenditure
2.1.9 Supply of school places
2.2.1 Other spend not funded
from the Schools Budget
2.3.1 Young people's learning
and development
2.3.2 Adult and Community
learning
2.3.3 Pension costs
2.3.4 Joint use arrangements
2.3.5 Insurance
2.4.1 Other Specific Grant
2.5.1 Total Other education and
community budget
3.0.1 Funding for individual Sure
Start Children's Centres
3.0.2 Funding for local authority
provided or commissioned area
wide services delivered through
Sure Start Children's Centres
3.0.3 Funding on local authority
management costs relating to
Sure Start Children's Centres
3.0.4 Other spend on children
under 5

.00

.00

471566.00

1002467.00

9548734.00

24738.00

.00

11047505.00

18581.00

11028924.00

.00

3513182.00

11164192.00

75105.00

465923.00

.00

15218402.00

16940.00

15201462.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

1181297.00

1181297.00

484235.00

697062.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

8535.00

8535.00

.00

8535.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

1157362.00

1157362.00

538436.00

618926.00

216548.00
.00

47080.00
.00

169468.00
.00

573555.00

5848.00

567707.00

1935582.00

1756140.00

179442.00

4962129.00
.00
34877.00
856592.00
45642324.00

32126.00
.00
.00
714171.00
6762840.00

4930003.00
.00
34877.00
142421.00
38879484.00

1278705.00

102165.00

1176540.00

4732352.00

1912.00

4730440.00

300000.00

.00

300000.00

238831.00

21000.00

217831.00

550613.00

19501.00

Page 18

3441.00

3.0.5 Total Sure Start children's
centres and other spend on
children under 5
3.1.1 Residential care
3.1.2a Fostering services
(excluding fees and allowances
for LA foster carers)
3.1.2b Fostering services (fees
and allowances for LA foster
carers)
3.1.3 Adoption services
3.1.4 Special guardianship
support
3.1.5 Other children looked after
services
3.1.6 Short breaks (respite) for
looked after disabled children
3.1.7 Children placed with family
and friends
3.1.8 Education of looked after
children
3.1.9 Leaving care support
services
3.1.10 Asylum seeker services
children
3.1.11 Total Children Looked
After
3.2.1 Other children and families
services
3.3.1 Social work (including LA
functions in relation to child
protection)
3.3.2 Commissioning and
Children's Services Strategy
3.3.3 Local Safeguarding
Childrens Board
3.3.4 Total Safeguarding
Children and Young People's
Services
3.4.1 Direct payments
3.4.2 Short breaks (respite) for
disabled children
3.4.3 Other support for disabled
children
3.4.4 Targeted family support
3.4.5 Universal family support
3.4.6 Total Family Support
Services
3.5.1 Universal services for
young people
3.5.2 Targeted services for
young people
3.5.3 Total Services for young
people
3.6.1 Youth justice
4.0.1 Capital Expenditure from
Revenue (CERA) (Non-schools
budget functions and Children's
and young people services)
5.0.1 Total Schools Budget and
Other education and community
budget (excluding CERA) (lines
1.6.1 and 2.4.1)
5.0.2 Total Children and Young
People's Services and Youth
Justice Budget (excluding
CERA)(lines 3.0.5 + 3.1.11 +
3.2.1 + 3.3.4 + 3.4.6 + 3.5.3 +
3.6.1)

5558.00

5558.00

38908.00

38908.00

38908.00

38908.00

22233.00

22233.00

5558.00

5558.00

6 Total Schools Budget, Other
education and community
budget, Children and Young
People's Services and Youth
Justice Budget (excluding CERA)
(lines 5.0.1 + 5.0.2)
7 Capital Expenditure (excluding
CERA)
8a.1 Substance misuse services
(Drugs, Alcohol and Volatile
substances) (included in 3.5.1
and 3.5.2 above)
8a.2 Teenage pregnancy
services (included in 3.5.1 and
3.5.2 above)

.00

13406700.00

1748700.00

4274600.00

Page 19

.00

6549888.00

125077.00

6424811.00

9530811.00
3740131.00

139.00
310621.00

9530672.00
3429510.00

5775983.00

.00

5775983.00

2247034.00
1780776.00

446579.00
194.00

1800455.00
1780582.00

1380664.00

239005.00

1141659.00

138674.00

48.00

138626.00

1739764.00

97.00

1739667.00

111165.00

8.00

111157.00

4963146.00

188986.00

4774160.00

5760.00

48.00

5712.00

31413908.00

1185725.00

30228183.00

1461235.00

1183.00

1460052.00

21592723.00

644196.00

20948527.00

7091792.00

393145.00

6698647.00

601564.00

456453.00

145111.00

29286079.00

1493794.00

27792285.00

520637.00
2507061.00

.00
501357.00

520637.00
2005704.00

1180293.00

.00

1180293.00

16766047.00
590695.00
21564733.00

8679171.00
4546.00
9185074.00

8086876.00
586149.00
12379659.00

714452.00

6174.00

708278.00

7015311.00

4910.00

7010401.00

7729763.00

11084.00

7718679.00

4749039.00
.00

3496941.00
.00

1252098.00
.00

589159175.00

8960503.00

580198672.00

102754645.00

15498878.00

87255767.00

691913820.00

24459381.00

667454439.00

19430000.00

19430000.00

.00

130334.00

1223.00

129111.00

.00

.00

.00

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8

Regulatory and Other Committee
Open Report on behalf of Debbie Barnes OBE, Executive Director of
Children's Services
Report to:

Schools Forum

Date:

26 June 2018
De-delegation of maintained primary school budgets
2019/20 & 2020/21
No

Subject:
Decision
Reference:
Key
decision?
Summary:

The purpose of the report is to seek approval from the maintained primary school
representatives' of the Forum to the Local Authory's (LA) proposals for the dedelegation of certain budgets in 2019/20 and 2020/21.

Recommendation(s):
That the maintained primary school representatives on the Schools Forum are asked to
support the proposals for de-delegation of the budgets for the period 2019/20 and
2020/21 (in principle), as set out above.
To support the LA's review in considering alternative approaches to providing support
to its most vulnerable maintained primary schools, and implementing changes to
improve education standards and resilience within schools.

Background
The Department for Education (DfE) previously introduced radical reforms to school
funding arrangements in April 2013. Although LAs were required to delegate more
budgets to schools as part of the reforms, they were permitted to seek de-delegation of
some services for maintained schools. The Government's decision to implement a new
national funding formula in 2018/19 still allows the de-delegation arrangement for
maintained schools to continue1.
Key features of these arrangements include:
 Only maintained schools can have funds de-delegated from their budget share.
Academies are therefore unaffected and, for that reason, they are not permitted to
vote on de-delegation matters.
 The decision to de-delegate funds for maintained schools should be considered
and voted upon separately by each sector.
 Where there are no maintained school representatives on the Schools Forum for a
particular sector, no decision can be made and de-delegation is therefore not
possible.
 Should there be conversion of any more schools to academies, it will reduce the
total sum de-delegated for a service, if the per pupil deduction remains unchanged.
1

DfE Schools Revenue 2018 to 2019 – Operational Guide

Page 21



Any underspendings that arise on budgets de-delegated from maintained schools
should, as a point of principle (i.e. fairness), be earmarked for the benefit of the
maintained schools in that sector only.

De-delegations for 2018/19
For 2018/19 maintained primary schools agreed to de-delegate funding for:
 Contingency, i.e. termination of employment costs for schools in financial difficulty,
and; exceptional unforeseen costs; and
 Ethnic Minority and Traveller Education Team (EMTET).
No funds were de-delegated for maintained secondary schools.
The report to the Schools Forum last year stated the cumulative underspend at 31st March
2017 was £0.853m.
At the meeting 4th October 2017, it was agreed that:
1. Due to government regulations, the easiest way to return unspent funds to the
maintained primary schools was to adjust the LA's proposed charges for the
following year. It was accepted that as a consequence of this approach, the per
pupil amounts de-delegated would vary from year to year.
2. In light of the cumulative underspend reported, and considering the decision to
continue with the reduced de-delegation rates in 2017/18 for maintained primary
schools with the remaining costs being met from cumulative underspend (the
cumulative underspend was projected to fall to £0.316m by March 20182), the LA
proposed to continue with the current de-delegation rates in 2018/19 for maintained
primary schools.
3. Based on the Government's funding announcement in 2018/19 and previous years
spending levels on the termination of employment costs for schools in financial
difficulty, the LA proposed to reduce the budget by £0.1m to £0.150m in 2018/19.
4. To set the sums de-delegated for 2018/19 as follows:
Contingency3
£16.06 per pupil
Ethnic Minority and Traveller Education Team (EMTET)
£ 5.44 per pupil
The cumulative underspend reported at 31st March 2018 is £0.608m.
At the year-end, the LA made a decision to move Consultant headteacher costs of
£0.260m from the de-delegation budget to core Council funding, which increased the dedelegation cumulative underspend from £0.348m to £0.608m. This decision was made to
enable an additional time-limited investment into school improvement activities over the
next three years through additional school advisor support to maintained schools. This is
being progressed by the LA.
The cumulative underspend excluding the LA year-end adjustment is £0.348m. This is
broadly in line with the cumulative underspend position based on the assumption the
budgets will be fully spent (£0.316m); however the number of schools attending the LA
Staffing Reduction Panel did increase during 2017/18 to ensure a sustainable budget
could be put in place. The LA Staffing Reduction Panel meets to carefully consider
maintained primary schools’ applications to access the termination of employment costs
for schools in financial difficulties budget. Schools will need to demonstrate that without
2

st

The projected 31 March 2018 cumulative underspend position was based on the assumption that
the budgets will be fully spent.
3
This includes the Termination of Employment costs, Consultant headteachers and School
Intervention.

Page 22

implementing its proposed staffing reductions it will fall into a deficit within two years. Only
then will this budget contribute to the redundancy costs. The financial contribution that
maintained primary schools will be required to make towards redundancies (if they meet
the criteria) will be the first £5,000 of the total cost of every redundancy; or 50% of the total
cost of every redundancy, whichever is the greater, subject to a maximum redundancy
amount payable of 2.5% of the school’s budget share for the financial year. In 2017/18,
the expenditure incurred for termination of employment costs was £0.264m for maintained
primary schools, which is £0.014m over the 2017/18 agreed budget level and higher than
expected, but it is in recognition of the financial challenges that some schools are facing
(i.e. reducing pupil numbers, increased costs etc.). The budget in 2018/19 was reduced to
£0.150m, therefore there is a financial risk to this budget overspending if activity is at a
similar level to the prior year. The LA has a Monitoring and Intervention Policy that targets
resource at supporting schools at risk of going into a financial deficit.
Based on the assumption that the budgets will be fully spent in 2018/19, the cumulative
underspend is projected to fall to £0.071m (excluding the LA year-end adjustment) by 31st
March 2019. This financial position is however lower than the £0.2m provision planned for
to enable the prudent management of the demand-led nature of the budgets.
Information regarding the current services is set out in Appendix 1.
Proposals for 2019/20 and 2020/21
It is proposed that the charges for 2019/20 would revert back to the required 2019/20
baseline amounts per pupil for the de-delegation budgets (as outlined in the October 2017
Schools Forum De-delegation budget report). The per pupil rates would be set at:
Contingency
Ethnic Minority and Traveller Education Team (EMTET)
This would finance:
Termination of employment costs
Consultant headteachers
Exceptional unforeseen costs
Ethnic Minority and Traveller Education Team (EMTET)

£27.00 per pupil
£ 5.55 per pupil

£0.250m
£0.291m
£0.380m
£0.189m

These figures are indicative. They are based on the October 2017 census and 34,106
maintained primary pupils. The figures may change slightly due to the DfE's requirement
for LAs to use the latest October census for the detailed calculations.
For 2019/20 the termination of employment budget for schools in financial difficulties will
revert back to the 2017/18 budget amount of £0.250m considering the expenditure that
was incurred in that financial year. The new national funding formula has increased the
overall level of funding received by Lincolnshire mainstream schools in 2018/19, therefore
improving the financial outlook of schools, however due to the demand-led nature of the
termination of employment budget it requires a level of prudence to be applied. The
budget requirements for de-delegations will continue to be kept under review ensuring that
a suitable level of cumulative underspend is available to respond to unexpected costs arise
through the delivery of services, i.e. an increased demand from primary maintained
schools.

Page 23

The Government in September 2017 introduced a new School Improvement (SI)
monitoring and brokering grant4, which was previously funded through the Government's
Education Services Grant General Duties Rate before the Government ceased funding in
August 20175. The annual amount of funding through this Government grant is £0.702m
compared to the spending on the core school improvement service of £1.087m in 2018/19.
The additional cost of £0.385 p.a. for the school improvement service is met through core
Council's funding.
The Government has updated guidance following the introduction of the SI grant to enable
Schools Forum to agree to de-delegate funding for additional school improvement
activities for maintained schools. The LA is proposing to use this addition to the dedelegation guidance as an opportunity to consider whether there are alternative
approaches to providing support to Lincolnshire's most vulnerable maintained primary
schools (currently supported through the Consultant headteachers and Exceptional
unforeseen costs (intervention fund)) to improve education standards and resilience within
schools. The LA will ensure the options are within the funding levels proposed within this
report, benefits are identified and risks are understood and managed before the LA agrees
to implement any changes. Schools Forum will be informed of any LA changes.

The Schools Forum maintained primary schools are required to agree de-delegations on
an annual basis, however the LA will continue to seek agreement in principle from the
Forum for 2020/21 also.
Next Steps
The outcomes from the decisions made by maintained primary representatives on the
Schools Forum will be reflected in maintained primary schools' future budgets.
The LA will consider alternative options of providing support to Lincolnshire's most
vulnerable maintained primary schools following the DfE's introduction for additional school
improvement activities for maintained schools through the de-delegation funding approach.
The Schools Forum will be informed of any LA changes to the support provided to
Lincolnshire's most vulnerable maintained primary schools.

Consultation
a) Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out?
No
b) Risks and Impact Analysis
N/A

4

The SI grant allow LA's to continue to monitor performance of maintained schools, broker school
improvement provision, and intervene as appropriate.
5
The General Duties Rate was funding relating to the responsibilities LA's hold for maintained schools
only. Functions in addition to School Improvement are Statutory and Regulatory Duties (e.g. financial
governance, HR duties, H&S compliance etc.), and Asset Management.

Page 24

Appendices
These are listed below and attached at the back of the report
Appendix A
Details of the current service provision funded through the dedelegation budgets.
Background Papers
Document title
De-delegation of
maintained
primary schools
budgets 2018/19
and 2019/20.

Where the document can be viewed
http://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s19758/DeDelegation%20of%20maintained%20primary%20schools.pdf

This report was written by Mark Popplewell, who can be contacted on 01522
553326 or mark.popplewell@lincolnshire.gov.uk.

Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 1
Details of current service provision
Schools in financial difficulty and exceptional unforeseen costs
a. Schools in financial difficulty
The DfE reforms no longer permit the LA to hold a budget for school redundancies. Since 2013/14,
Schools Forum representatives of maintained primary schools have voted to retain a budget for
schools in financial difficulty. The LA’s Staffing Reduction panel continues to meet to consider
requests for redundancies and access to those funds. The LA’s long established policy of charging
schools for a share of redundancy costs remains in place. However, a tightening of those
arrangements was introduced in 2013/14, such that a contribution from this budget will only be made
for schools that are likely to overspend within the next two financial years if no action is taken. In
2017/18, the redundancy expenditure was £0.264m for maintained primary schools against the
budget of £0.250m. The 2019/20 budget proposal is to revert back to the 2017/18 budget amount of
£0.250m considering the expenditure that was incurred in that financial year – the 2018/19 budget is
£0.150m.
Since the reforms were introduced, a budget has not been held for maintained secondary schools.
This was mainly because there were relatively few maintained secondary schools and several of them
were considered unlikely to fall in to financial difficulty. It was therefore assumed that the sector
would probably not be supportive of creating a de-delegated budget. Also, it was recognised that with
so few secondary maintained schools, there would not be sufficient critical mass to operate an
insurance type arrangement, as is possible with maintained primary schools.
b. Exceptional unforeseen costs
The DfE expects a de-delegated budget for exceptional unforeseen costs to finance those costs
which it would be unreasonable to expect governing bodies to meet. In Lincolnshire, de-delegation
was approved in 2013/14 to finance the long established school intervention work, and the provision
of the Consultant headteachers service. A budget was not de-delegated for maintained secondary
schools, for similar reasons to those explained above.
Further detail on the use of the funds this year for:
 Consultant headteacher
 Primary Maintained School Intervention
 Ethnic Minority and Traveller Education Team (EMTET)
is set out below.

Page 1

Page 27

Consultant Headteacher Deployment
With effect from 1st September 2016 there is a team of 6 Consultant Headteachers: one permanent,
full time team leader; 2 permanent team members (1 full time, 1 at 0.8 FTE) and 3 seconded team
members at 0.2 FTE until 31st March 2019.
The 0.2 FTE posts are used to support and mentor all new and acting headteachers, of maintained
primary schools, in Lincolnshire. Each new headteacher has an offer of up to 6 days or 12 half days
support. This support programme covers all the main aspects of the role. If significant issues emerge
support to the school moves to the permanent team so that more time can be given to coaching whole
leadership teams.
The permanent team:








work alongside headteachers and leadership teams in vulnerable schools.
provide part or full time Consultant Headteachers in schools where the headteacher is absent and
no leaders from within the school are able to step into the role.
work alongside acting headteachers to coach and mentor them to enable them to quickly become
skilled leaders.
are usually deployed in schools graded by OfSTED as Requiring Improvement or inadequate to
support rapid improvement.
liaise with governors, teaching schools, neighbouring schools and Locality Leads to find longer
term support for leadership teams where appropriate.
provide a rapid response to urgent requests for support.
spend varying amounts of time in each school as this is determined by the school’s own capacity
for sustaining the improvements.

The team is led by a Lead Consultant Head Teacher. She arranges deployment of the team and
ensures that schools needing urgent support get it quickly.

Page 2

Page 28

Primary Maintained School Intervention
2017-18 Review
The purpose
The Intervention Funding budget supports maintained primary schools to make rapid, identified
improvements where school finances would otherwise prevent this from happening. The funding
enables schools to continue to be good schools or to rapidly improve to become a good school.
Amount of funding received and spent
For the 2017/18 financial year the budget funded 57 different schools for specific issues. These were
identified through a combination of Locality Leads, Consultant Head Teachers, governors and
leadership teams.
In 2017/18 the Intervention budget was £0.379m and £0.355m has been utilised. Schools bid for
specific amounts and send in plans which detail the amount, the reason and the expected impact of
the additional funding. The school has to show that they do not have the funding in their own budget
to enable them to make the necessary improvements or changes. Amounts in bids ranged from
£1,200 to £21,000.
How funding was spent
The Intervention budget enabled maintained schools facing financial or declining standards to take
remedial action to prevent poor OfSTED outcomes or avoid falling into a category by taking early
action. The ability to provide this support has also enabled greater levels of school improvement
activity to take place based on the view of the Locality Lead, using a variety of intelligence to support
improved outcomes for learners in maintained schools. Schools were required to show that bids
would be sustainable and would improve outcomes for pupils and students. The School Intervention
Funding policy was applied consistently and appropriately over the course of the financial year.
Individual bids were very specific to each school, but activity included:
 Enhanced induction and support of new head teachers in schools deemed vulnerable or
higher (15 schools)
 Participate in a small schools project to support improved attainment and progression in
mathematics
 Purchase intervention resources that supported and complimented agreed priorities
 Support external partnership and networking activity to encourage peer review, partnership
working and connecting with the broader sector
 Purchase Teaching School / Private Consultancy support to provide professional development
and training for staff in areas of need
 Provide enhanced teaching and learning reviews to verify the external view of the performance
of the school
 Commission additional leadership support for complex cases e.g. Deputy Support, Leadership
support
 Accessing Governance training through the Strengthening Governance Offer via National
Leaders of Governance and partners
Outcomes
In July 2017, data in Lincolnshire showed relative improvement at Key Stage 2; increasing by 5% in
Reading, Writing, Maths combined. However, this is still below the National and the focus for the
autumn and spring term has been to drive standards and add capacity to improve which we would
measure in the July 2018 dataset.
Page 3

Page 29

Dependent on the measure, the Local Authority rating system of schools shows that 19 of the schools
are now viewed as being vulnerable rather than high risk or schools causing concern, 3 are no longer
of concern, 3 are viewed as improving but are awaiting sponsorship to academy / have been
converted to academies and are not yet rated. The remainder are still rated as previously, as the
impact report is still awaited in terms of impact due to the timing of the bid being submitted. As a
team, we are confident that the impact of the intervention funding is very positive in gaining traction to
improve schools and therefore outcomes for learners.
Where schools have been subject to OfSTED or HMI monitoring visits, there have been positive
comments from having this fund available.
Proposals for 2018/19
The budget for 2018/19 is subject to review following the change to DfE guidance. The proposed
budget is intended to be utilised in a similar manner, however with a more strategic approach as this
offers the best value for money to support as many schools as possible. The intention would be to
use it in the following way:
 Specific school bids that meet threshold and address priorities
 Small Schools Project (2nd round of Mathematics in mixed age classes and the 1st round of
English in mixed age classes)
 Enhanced Head teacher induction for schools facing difficulty
 Supporting the commissioning of intervention and resources to improve outcomes for learners
at school
 Ensure schools remain connected to the sector led system to support school improvement
where action needs to be taken
Locality Leads would continue to suggest intervention bids where they are appropriate and support
the bid writing so that it is appropriate. They would continue to monitor the impact and maintain a
view of the school moving forward to ensure that outcomes are improved and the legacy of the
funding can be seen.

Page 4

Page 30

Ethnic Minority and Traveller Education Team (EMTET)
The Service Area
The Ethnic Minority Achievement Service (EMAS) was reconfigured in September 2011 to form the
Ethnic Minority and Traveller Education Team (EMTET). The current team has a two tier structure
that advises and supports schools to accommodate the needs of ethnic minority and traveller children.
The officers support schools to work with families and ensure that they are able to access services
available to their children, particularly education. They support the integration of specific children as
well as help schools to develop and maintain systems that are needed to provide a fully inclusive and
safe environment for these particular groups of young people. The team leaders are able to offer
more specific advice required by schools to support children with English as an Additional Language
(EAL). The service has received positive feedback from schools, services and families.
Background to need
There are 10,419 pupils in Lincolnshire school that have EAL. Of these around 3,123 have either
been in the country for less than 2 years or have started year reception as an EAL learner. Of those
EAL learners, 60% are in maintained schools, 40% in academies. More than 80% of the new EAL
learners are in the primary schools. EMTET will work with those schools that either lack knowledge or
experience of good practice in supporting Ethnic Minority, Travellers or pupils with EAL, or where the
school has tried a number of strategies and seeks specialist support for further advice. There is a
growing demand for support in relation to communication with parents, children with special needs
and integration of Traveller children.
From Autumn 2016 and then annually, as part of the schools census, schools will need to indicate a
pupil's proficiency in English where the pupil's language is 'other than English'. It is important that a
specialist team is available for schools to ensure their assessment is accurate and support to improve
provision is accessible.
National and international events have led to an increase in incidents of a racist nature including hate
crime. Where required, the service supports schools and families to address individual racist
incidents and reduce future intolerance to those of different ethnic and cultural backgrounds.
The purpose of the Service
The overall aim of the EMTET is to provide a service to schools and families that support the following
objectives:
 Improving the safety and well-being of Ethnic Minority and Traveller children (supporting families
to find a school place and settle into education).
 Improving access to learning particularly those with EAL (advising schools of good EAL practice
through training and consultancy).
 Supporting transition (supporting family's knowledge of school admissions, school systems,
transport, free school meals etc.).
 Improving conditions for learning that reflect culture and lifestyle, and value diversity - training and
workshops to school staff and young people, working with parents to improve integration.
Budget received/ spent
The service is funded, in part, by a de-delegated contribution (from maintained primary schools) of
£0.189m. During 2013/14 the service undertook a number of measures to ensure that it operated
within its budget (due to the per pupil apportionment of the original budget to academy schools) for
the 2014/15 financial year including the re-structuring the service and its delivery.

Page 5

Page 31

The service reduced has 1.8fte team leaders and 4.6fte officers both on 38 week contracts. To partmitigate the annual budget reduction the service introduced elements that are income generating.
£0.189m funds 78% of the total service cost.
Outcomes for the Service









Supporting approximately 143 children per year in 49 schools, through a single child referral
process (this may lead to impact on wider family and/or whole class/school)
Support to develop and improve current practice for supporting Ethnic Minority and Traveller
families.
Training and consultancy advice for schools and school staff on supporting pupils with EAL and
cultural awareness including SEN/EAL cluster groups
Supporting the admission of ethnic minority and Traveller families into school, particularly
reception.
Workshops (Diversity, Learning in another language, Traveller awareness) with young people
around cultural and language awareness and understanding equality
Coordinating racial incident reporting and assisting schools to deal with racist related behaviour.
Use of bilingual supporters to help school engage with children and families.
Exploring opportunities through communities, that impact on pupil's progress and integration.
Supporting 13 supplementary schools across Lincolnshire.

Future Developments







Recruitment of bank of bilingual volunteers to support the First Language Assessment toolkit in
Autumn 2018.
Working in partnership with LCVYS to provide training for supplementary schools
Training programme for EAL parents on school education system
Close collaboration with Specialist Teaching Team and Speech and Language
The launch of a Parent Ambassador scheme.
Increasing number of bilingual supports available to schools.

Page 6

Page 32

Agenda Item 10

Regulatory and Other Committee
Open Report on behalf of Debbie Barnes OBE, Executive Director Children's
Services
Report to:

Lincolnshire Schools Forum

Date:

26 June 2018

Subject:
Decision
Reference:
Key
decision?
Summary:

Schools Outreach Services Update
No

The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the three strands of
Lincolnshire's School Outreach Offer;
 The Behaviour Outreach Support Service (BOSS);
 The Autism and Learning Difficulties (ALD) Outreach Service
 The Physical Disabilities (PD) Outreach Service.

Recommendation(s):
To note the progress and contributions the services are making, and to consider
if further information and updates are required in relation to these services in
the future.

Background
Overarching Aim of the Services:
The overarching aim of these Outreach Services is to feed into a robust and
integrated support offer for Children and Young People within the county and work
towards enabling Lincolnshire schools to better support pupils within their own
settings.
They are available county wide to all schools and academies in Lincolnshire and
may be accessed by Early Years Settings for pupils transitioning up to Year 1.
The services also contribute to the creation of EHC Plans and the SEND
assessment and tribunal processes, including contribution to the provision of
professional reports on individual pupils when requested and appropriate and form
part of Lincolnshire's local SEND offer to families, children, young people and
Schools.

Page 33

Behaviour Outreach Support Service
Provider: Family Action
Contract Dates: 01/09/2016 - 31/08/2019
Annual Contract Value: £1,282,047
Total Contract Value: £3,846,141
The BOSS was commissioned to provide targeted outreach to Lincolnshire
Schools working to support pupils who display persistent, challenging behaviours.
Outreach support is delivered primarily through targeted intervention packages for
pupils. Interventions are designed to develop and implement long-term,
sustainable, behaviour strategies for both individual pupils and their key staff
members with a view to, wherever possible, reducing or removing the pupil's risk of
permanent exclusion and enhancing the ability of the setting to consistently meet a
wider range of behavioural needs going forward.
The service supports school engagement with the Lincolnshire Ladder of
Behavioural Intervention (LLBI) by operating within the behaviour pathway.
Schools may access the Service only when they can demonstrate that they have
completed step 1 of the LLBI (Schools- led interventions) within a Pastoral Support
Plan.
The service underpins the final step of the Ladder, intervention placement within a
pupil referral unit or, for older pupils, referral onto a work related learning pathway,
in that BOSS must support all applications for them to be accepted by panel. This
has promoted across the county a shared understanding of what schools must
reasonably be expected to do before considering alternative provision. The service
also supports pupils through transition in and out of alternative provision.
Alongside these targeted and intensive pupil interventions are a range of other
provisions available to service users, including;







School training packages, designed to upskill and empower settings, to
raise awareness of and develop strategies to provide on-going and long
term behavioural support for pupils in the classroom;
Review of School Behaviour Policies;
Access to a Restorative Practitioner, commissioned by Family Action to
work within the core service, delivering individual and group pupil
interventions, school staff training, and also training Family Action staff to
become restorative champions and to use the techniques of restorative
practice in their own intervention work;
Transition and reintegration support for managed moves.

Page 34

Progress/data:
Since it was set up in September 2016, BOSS has worked with 727 pupils,
providing targeted support to manage the behaviour of individual pupils/students
that may result in exclusion. These numbers continue to steadily rise, as referrals
to the service increase.
Table 1: Showing the Number of Interventions Carried out by BOSS

YEAR 1

YEAR 2

TOTALS

Primary School Setting

Secondary School
Setting

Term
1
2
3
4
5
6

20
40
45
35
46
35

19
67
29
45
58
40

1
2

52
64

53
79

337

390

Training:
During the period September 2016 to December 2017, 182 training sessions have
been delivered in schools. These include whole school awareness training and
specific sessions delivered for classes or staff members. Topics covered include;
Building emotional resilience in School, Strengthening Wellbeing and Professional
Resilience, Attachment in the Classroom, Adolescent Mental Health and
Restorative Practice in Schools
Exclusion Data:
Permanent exclusion data (received from the Pupil Reintegration Team) in Chart 1
shows a general reduction in permanent exclusions since 2013/14.

Page 35

Chart 1: Showing the Numbers of Permanent Exclusions since 2013/14

BOSS Restorative Schools Pilot
Year 1 Update (2016-17):
Restorative Solutions, sub contracted by Family Action to work with 20 schools to
develop restorative approaches within school, to support schools to improve their
capacity to manage challenging behaviour and contribute to a reduction in
permanent and fixed term exclusions.
All Lincolnshire schools were invited to participate in the pilot. 23 schools
requested places; some of these were unable to participate due to changes in
leadership and capacity issues. Restorative Solutions reported that, buy-in from
senior leadership has been key to the success of the intervention and as such,
those school most willing to participate and engage have reported the best and
most positive results.
Training Stage:
44 individuals received 1 day Introduction to Restorative Approaches training. A
further 44 Individuals received 3 day Restorative Practitioner training. Additionally,
3 parent workshops and 14 awareness and informal training sessions were
delivered involving teaching staff, governors, teaching assistants, lunchtime
supervisors.
School Development Stage:
Each school was given an assessment and action plan for the remainder of the
academic in order to continue their progress towards becoming a restorative
school. Action plans included consultancy days from Restorative practitioners,

Page 36

increasing knowledge and understanding of restorative approaches of the wider
school community, reviews of existing behaviour policies and procedures and
implementing restorative approaches to deal with incidents within school.
Evaluation:
Surveys were sent to all participating schools to measure the impact of their
participation in the pilot. Schools were given Signs of Safety scaling to rate the
current impact of each element, 10 responses were received. In summary:
 All schools have implemented restorative approaches to some extent
following participation in the training;
 All schools have found the use of restorative approaches to be effective
although some have identified areas where further support is required;
 50% of schools have updated their school behaviour policy to include
restorative approaches, there is ongoing work in relation to policy
development in a further 30%;
 60% of schools felt that restorative approaches would contribute to
reductions in exclusions in the future;
 60% of schools agreed that they have observed a positive impact of
restorative approaches on challenging behaviour and have developed the
expertise to respond to incidents restoratively rather than through exclusion.
Exclusion data shows a reduction in the overall numbers of exclusions made by
participating schools during the pilot year. Evaluative feedback from these schools
also suggests that there is evidence that the use of restorative practice in
managing challenging behaviour has developed within the schools and the majority
are hopeful that this will contribute to a longer term cultural shift.
Year 2 Update (2017-18):
The Restorative Pilot has been expanded into a second year and is currently in
progress. The focus for Year 2 is Targeted Secondary Intervention;
Restorative Solutions practitioners are now working intensively with 4 Lincolnshire
Secondary Schools focusing on developing senior leadership commitment to
restorative approaches in the areas of: behaviour management, the continuing
professional development of staff, and, reintegration of pupils at all levels but with a
particular emphasis on return from fixed term exclusion and managed moves/ midterm admissions.
Each school has a bespoke package of support to ensure appropriate expertise
can be assigned and are committed to exploring alternatives to exclusion for all
pupils throughout the year. Restorative Solutions draw on a pool of associates with
skills and experience in a range of areas and work alongside BOSS Workers to

Page 37

ensure all aspects of the Lincolnshire Ladder of Behavioural Intervention form part
of the offer.
Total delivery so far consists of:
 Formal three day training 24 delegates (+2 one day introductory training);
 18 pupils undertaking 4 weeks of 1 hour sessions in Restorative
Approaches;
 65 school staff undertaking 1 hour training sessions in Restorative
Approaches;
 18 staff members receiving one to one coaching/support/training.
The BOSS team are providing the equivalent of 1 full day of additional support
directly in school to each of the Academies on the programme. This time is being
used according to the local project plans and priorities for each school, some of
which are still evolving as staff awareness increases, training proceeds and
opportunities develop.
Continuous Improvement
During its early initiation phase, Schools raised concerns regarding the delivery of
the Behavioural Outreach Support Service and the ability to adequately respond to
School and pupil needs. Family Action and the service has worked closely with
LCC to address the issues raised. The BOSS conducted their Year 1 Stakeholder
Survey in July 2017. All Lincolnshire Schools were invited to participate and 75
responses were received.
In Summary:









Schools identified significant improvements in the service since it began in
September 2016. 64% of respondents scaled improvements 7 or above out
of 10 (1 being minimal improvement and 10 being excellent improvement),
8% rated the improvements in the service as 10 out of 10;
76.7% of schools rated their overall satisfaction with the service 7 or above
out of 10 (with 1 being poor and 10 being excellent) , 15% rated their
satisfaction with the service as 10 out of 10;
76.4% of Schools agreed that BOSS's initial assessments helped to identify
a pupil's strengths and weaknesses, and to identify clear targets for
improvement;
77.92% of Schools agreed that BOSS support was timely, reliable and
professional;
69.12% of Schools agreed that they would recommend BOSS to other
schools.

This feedback from schools has been very positive and serves to illustrate how the
service has worked closely with stakeholders to build relationships and gain trust
over the first year of the contract.

Page 38

Service User Feedback
Examples of feedback received by Family Action during the period April - July
2017:
School Feedback:
 Thank you for being constant and doing intense work. Thank you for your patience,
persistence and input. (Young person completed exams).
 N made it through exams without any more exclusion. School are confident N will
do well in exams, thank you.
 The plan has been very useful in supporting JW and the staff working with him. JW
has made good progress in his behaviour management and in turn his learning is
now beginning to improve. JW is no longer at risk of exclusion and we feel more
confident in the support we have in place to ensure JW is able to access the
curriculum in a safe way. The support from BOSS, both direct contact with JW and
in support role for staff (Observations, attending TAC meetings and consultation)
have been integral in getting support and strategies in place.
 W is a superstar. He is accessing his learning and he has been a lovely little boy.
Staff are more conscious of the language they use and careful to make sure they
are direct with him. No concerns about transition to Year 2 as his teacher will be
fully briefed about the strategies.
Parent/Carer Feedback:
 Thank you, you have been a great support. I can’t thank you enough, it's been a
long journey. I didn’t think we would get out of it but with support we have go out the
other side. Things could have been a lot worse. BOSS has been there for C.
 D's time with BOSS has been beneficial. D was often placed in isolation or excluded
as he was unable to manage his anger. He has strategies and can deal with his
anger successfully. My son and BOSS have a good relationship. If this intervention
had not been put in place when it had the outcome could have been very different
as he was heading for permanent exclusion. Thank you.
Pupil Feedback:
 I have done well to remain in school without a permanent exclusion. I am
confident I will get my exams if I study hard and get the college course I want
 I am feeling happy and confident. I intend to join the army when I leave school. I am
studying hard to get my grades.
 I have learned the following about myself: How well I can do if I try: I can stand on
my own 2 feet and do things for myself: I am a good electrician and got 86%
overall: I am more confident and more mature:

Page 39

Contract Management
The contract has been running well and continues to grow and develop, with a
strong future outlook. The recent “Inclusive Lincolnshire” Conference, wholly
arranged and staffed by the BOSS team in partnership with Restorative Solutions,
was well attended and received highly positive feedback on the day.
Service managers from Family Action attend regular, termly, contract management
meetings with representatives from LCC's Strategic Children's Commissioning
Team and the Service Manager for Inclusion. Performance reporting is clear and
timely and all agreed performance measures are now on or above target.
Year 1 service spend came in over the agreed budget as a result of changes made
to increase service delivery and performance as part of the 2016 Remediation
Plan, with Family Action bearing the cost of the overspend. A spending plan has
been implemented for Year 2 of the contract in order to bring in on budget.

Autism and Learning Difficulties Schools Outreach
Provider: Working Together Team (WTT) (Led by Gosberton House Academy)
Contract Dates: 01/09/2015 - 31/08/2020
Annual Contract Value: £617,500
Total Contract Value: £3,087,500
The ALD Outreach Service was commissioned to provide outreach support in
schools for pupils with Autism, mild, moderate and severe learning difficulties and
social communication challenges which impact on cognitive development and
learning potential.
The service provides support in schools for pupils through both direct pupil
interventions, designed to put in place on-going individual support packages in the
classroom for pupils and a comprehensive training offer for school staff. To
compliment these, the service also provides schools with access to a lending
library of sensory equipment and teaching and learning resources for use in their
settings.
The service is very much focused on up-skilling schools in order to empower
settings with the knowledge and confidence to create inclusive environments in
which autistic pupils can thrive. To this end, the WTT offer the option of supporting
schools to work towards a Lincolnshire Autism Inclusion Mark (AIM4Lincs) as a
means of encouraging schools to celebrate and develop good autism practice.
The service also works with stakeholders, including families and the wider
community, to support pupils through key transitions in their school lives by running
open access training and information events in local community hubs. Gosberton
House Academy have also begun to offer open mornings to allow observation of
best practice in an Autism- friendly educational setting. In this way the service

Page 40

offers a holistic package of support for autistic pupils in Lincolnshire, and,
contributes significantly to the county wide All Age Autism Strategy.
Schools Training Offer:
The ALD training offer to schools comprises of both Autism Education Trust (AET)
modules and bespoke sessions, delivered in school settings.
The AET modules are tiered to encourage maximum participation (tiers increase in

time and depth with Tier 1 giving an overview accessible to all setting staff and
parents). The programme is funded by the DFE and aims to raise the level of
autism knowledge and improve practice among all education professionals and
school staff working with pupils aged 5 – 16 years. The WTT have the exclusive
license to deliver the AET training packages into all Lincolnshire Schools.
The bespoke sessions are run at the request of individual schools, in response to a
need arising within a particular setting and cover a range of ALD related topics
including, but not limited to; ADHD, Pathological Demand Avoidance and
Attachment Disorders Training, Communication Techniques, Social Stories and
Comic Strip Conversations Training.
All training options are delivered free of charge with the exception of AET Tiers 2 &
3 modules which have an administrative cost of £40 per delegate
National Recognition:
The WTT have become a nationally recognised example of best practice in Autism
support, having been re-accredited by the National Autistic Society (NAS) through their
Autism Accreditation Peer Review, in Autumn 2016 and subsequently receiving a Autism
Accreditation Commendation from the NAS on 1st November 2017. This was for
'exceptional work within the criteria of Education, Social Care and Health', based on their
work for the ALD Outreach Service.
Training Uptake:

The WWT require that schools undertake a minimum of AET Tier 1 training before
referring any pupil to their service. As a result of this, uptake of AET training has
been excellent. At the close of Year 2 of the contract, only 6 schools across the
county have not accessed some level of training or support through the service.
The NAS 2016 NAS Autism Accreditation Peer Review praised the service for its
ability to deliver high quality training to such a high number of delegates, stating;
'Delivering training which can have such an influence on whole school
practice is an achievement in itself but one which is especially worth of note
given the amount that is delivered.'
As demonstrated in Table 2 (below) a number of schools have expanded their
training uptake and progressed through the higher tiers of AET training available to
them. As this training is not mandatory, takes more staff time and has an attached
cost of £40 per delegate, this suggests a strong commitment and investment in the
programme from the schools involved.

Page 41

Table 2: Showing Uptake of AET School Training
Autumn
2015
AET Tier 1:
Making Sense of Autism
AET Tier 2:
Good Autism Practice
AET Tier 2:
AET Progression
Framework
AET Tier 3 :
Leading Good Autism
Practice

Spring Summer
Autumn Spring
2016
2016
2016
2017
Numbers of Delegates Attending

Summer
2017

Autumn
2017

603

1221

2455

2595

1131

619

434

-

-

169

196

166

118

333

-

-

-

-

-

32

0

-

-

-

-

11

15

0

School Feedback:

 I just wanted to write a quick note regarding the invaluable support and
provision I have accessed through the WTT; it has been invaluable as a
support for myself and the variety of pupils you have worked with over the
past year. Specifically, intervention with CD and MP has been a key factor in
re engaging both of these students back into school. CD specifically has
now had a 10% increase in her attendance and has even managed to arrive
at school before 9am on a number of occasions!
 Without Fran and the team’s support we have had at least two cases that I
can think of that would have certainly ended up with either a permanent
exclusion or non-attendance on behalf of the student. It often feels that Fran
shines a light when you feel you have reached the end of the tunnel – both
for parents and for staff. We are given ideas to try, solutions to consider and
an honest approach which is totally invaluable. I often find that when dealing
with autistic students many of the issues come to a head in the home and
this can be hard for school staff to advise upon but Fran always has ways
through and seems to be able to reach the unreachable.
I also have to tell you that the Tier 1 training that Fran and Adele delivered
to the whole staff is often quoted and still remarked upon as being some of
the best, and most useful training, we have ever had as a staff. The WTT is
a much valued resource in these parts!
Contract Management:

WTT continues to perform extremely well in their delivery of this contract and have
a focus on the future growth and development of the service, specifically
expanding their training offer to include more bespoke and targeted sessions.
All KPIs are on target. Financial reporting is clear and timely and the contract is
operating within budget. There are no concerns with running of the contract and
stakeholder feedback is extremely positive.

Page 42

Physical Disabilities Schools Outreach
Provider: Lincoln St Francis School (delivered by the onsite Outreach Team)
Contract Dates: 01/09/2015 – 31/08/2020
Annual Contract Value: £140,436
Total Contract Value: £702,180
The PD Outreach Service was commissioned to provide outreach support in
schools for pupils with profound and multiple physical disabilities, cognitive
disabilities, life limiting conditions and sensory impact. The predominant disabilities
supported by the service are; Cerebral Palsy, Downs Syndrome, Muscular
Dystrophy and Spina Biffida.
The service is primarily focused on delivering bespoke packages of intervention in
the classroom, with an aim to offering an inclusive way forward for pupils to allow
them to continue to access as much of the school curriculum and overall learning
experience as possible and reduce or eliminate the duration of time physically
disabled pupils spend out of the classroom. This is achieved through the provision
of adaptive equipment, and, support strategies and techniques for staff. The main
areas of focus for intervention are; Moving and Handling, Assistive Technology
(AT) and Augmentative Alternative Communication (AAC).
Pupil Interventions:
Moving and handling interventions involve on-site risk assessments and
assessments of care needs and the devising of specific safety plans for pupils
based on their physical challenges. This may include aspects of personal care
such as feeding or toileting, strategies for transferring between classrooms or
vehicles. Outreach workers regularly consult with and work alongside other health
professionals in order to undertake multi-disciplinary assessments to ensure full
and robust support packages are put in place. Additionally, the service is able to
offer a wide range of assistive equipment to loan out to schools to support moving
and handling of pupils.
The immediacy of the interventions available serves to greatly minimise the time
pupils spend out of school following a sudden change to their physical support
needs. By comparison, schools previously required to order and purchase large or
complex pieces of equipment for pupils often waited for a number of months for
these to arrive and for training to be delivered, during which time pupils were
unable to access the school setting. These interventions also allow pupil's to
access elements of the extended curriculum such as after school clubs and
schools trips.
AT and AAC interventions involve the use of specialised equipment, such as
adapted keyboards and mice, switchboxes, switches or buttons which can be
activated by different parts of the body to make use of any areas in which pupils
have movement, to control computers or other electronic devices such as
wheelchairs.

Page 43

Alternative writing software and dictation programmes which allow pupils to use
predictive text and word banks to create sentences without the need to type or hold
a pencil and a range of communication software and hardware solutions for nonverbal pupils, such as symbol based programmes, are made available to schools
through the service.
The service loans out pre-loaded computers, laptops and iPads to schools to allow
pupils to access these resources and provides support, training and ongoing pupil
assessment to facilitate their use in the classroom.
The service works closely with the NHS Electronic Assistive Technology Service
(EATS) who provide assistive technologies for pupils in the home.
Staff Support and Training:
Training, support and advice is made available to school staff, who may have little
or no experience of working with physically disabled pupils. For both AT and AAC
interventions, the service works closely with classroom support staff in order to
develop their confidence and skills in using the technology provided and learning
how to best support pupils when accessing this and working with it on a daily basis.
This support is underpinned by a wider training offer for schools, designed to
increase overall awareness and understanding of different types of physical
disability and basic assistive strategies. All training options are delivered free of
charge with the exception of the service's Moving and Handling Training which has
an administrative cost of £50 per delegate:
The service also provides specific training for teaching staff for teaching staff
around adapting the curriculum and alternative teaching and assessment
strategies in order to increase accessibility for SLD pupils.
Service Uptake:
Uptake for the service has been high; at the close of Year 2, 108 (38%) of Primary
Schools and 48 (85%) of Secondary Schools in the County had accessed the
outreach support available.
Table 3: Showing the Uptake of PD Outreach Support
YEAR 2:
2016-2017

YEAR 3
2017-2018

Term 1

Term 2

Term 3

Term 1

Primary schools Requesting Assistance

117

130

108

130

Secondary Schools Requesting Assistance

39

40

48

36

Pre-schools/nurseries Requesting
Assistance

0

1

4

0

164

177

156

166

Total number of Pupils Receiving Outreach
Support During the Term

Page 44

School Feedback:
 ‘Without your help and loan of resources; we would not have been able to
offer a place in school for a year 6 child and they would have been out of
education for a significant time’.
 ‘It was very useful to have Carla attend an EHC meeting. She was able to
suggest different strategies and support’
 ‘Having access to a specialist was incredibly useful and their help will form
an important part of the ‘next steps’ decision making’

Contract Management:
The contract continues to run well will with no service delivery issues being raised
by either stakeholders or the service area. Service user feedback is extremely
positive, with schools being praised for their quick response times and specialist
knowledge.
Uptake of referrals to the service continues to rise and staff are working hard to
grow and develop the service to meet the needs of its users, specifically using
some of their available budget for this year to employ a Downs Syndrome
speciality worker to widen the support offer for schools.
The contract is running within budget and St Francis School is able to add value to
the service by using their experience in the field to work with mainstream settings
in order to bolster their confidence in supporting disabled pupils in an inclusive
classroom environment.

Conclusion
All three services continue to perform well, with positive feedback being received
across the three services.

Consultation
a) Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out??
No
b) Risks and Impact Analysis
Risk and Impact Analysis will be undertaken during formal commissioning service
review.

Page 45

Background Papers
There are no background papers in relation to this report.

This report was written by Mary Meredith, who can be contacted on 01522 554549
or mary.meredith@lincolnshire.gov.uk.

Page 46

Agenda Item 11

Regulatory and Other Committee
Open Report on behalf of John O'Connor, Children's Service Manager,
Education Support
Report to:

Schools Forum

Date:

26 June 2018

Subject:
Decision
Reference:
Key
decision?
Summary:

Academies and Trust Update
No

The purpose of this report is to provide information on the latest number of
academies, pupils in academies and academy trusts.

Recommendation(s):
The Schools Forum is asked to note the contents of the report.

Background
The Schools Forum asked for an update to be provided to each meeting on the number of academy
conversions.
This is the position as at the 1st June 2018. The pupil figures are based on the January 2018
census data (i.e. the latest published). The national academy trust data is the latest available from
Get information about schools.
Since the effective date of the last report (1st March 2017), there have been two academy
conversions of primary schools. These are Tattershall Holy Trinity Church of England
Primary School which joined Lincoln Anglican Academy Trust on 1st April 2018 and
Holbeach Bank Primary Academy which became sponsored by the Lincolnshire
Educational Trust Limited on 1st June. 23,476 pupils (an increase of 0.3%) are educated in
Primary Academies.
The total number of academies is now 156 (43.1%) educating 67,690 (64.2%) pupils.
Schools
Nursery
All
Maintained
Academy

5
5
0

Primary
All
Maintained
Academy

280
191
89

FTE

100.0%
0.0%

337
337
0

100.0%
0.0%

68.2%
31.8%

57,421
33,945
23,476

59.1%
40.9%

Page 47

Secondary
All
Maintained
Academy

55
3
52

Special
All
Maintained
Academy

21
7
14

PRU
All
Maintained
Academy

1
0
1

Total
All
Maintained
Academy

362
206
156

5.5%
94.5%

45,782
2,796
42,986

6.1%
93.9%

33.3%
66.7%

1,787
612
1,175

34.2%
65.8%

0.0%
100.0%

53
0
53

0.0%
100.0%

56.9%
43.1%

105,379
37,689
67,690

35.8%
64.2%

By 1st December 2018, if conversions and sponsored conversions proceed according to
their current target dates the position will be:
Projected Six Month Status of All Lincolnshire State Schools
Schools
Nursery
All
Maintained
Academy

5
5
0

Primary
All
Maintained
Academy

FTE

100.0%
0.0%

337
337
0

100.0%
0.0%

281
186
95

66.2%
33.8%

57,421
32,823
24,598

57.2%
42.8%

Secondary
All
Maintained
Academy

55
3
52

5.5%
94.5%

45,782
2,796
42,986

6.1%
93.9%

Special
All
Maintained
Academy

21
7
14

33.3%
66.7%

1,787
612
1,175

34.2%
65.8%

PRU
All
Maintained
Academy

1
0
1

0.0%
100.0%

53
0
53

0.0%
100.0%

Page 48

Total
All
Maintained
Academy

363
201
162

55.4%
44.6%

105,379
36,567
68,812

34.7%
65.3%

On the 1st September 2018, Boston Saint Mary's R.C. Primary School, Grantham St Mary's
Catholic Primary School and Spalding Saint Norbert's Catholic Primary School will join the
St Therese of Lisieux CMAT (the new name for St Gilbert of Sempringham Academies
Trust) and Cherry Willingham Primary School and Waddington Redwood Primary School
will join the Priory Federation of Academies.
This will meant that 95 (33.8%) primary schools will be academies educating 24,598
(42.8%) of the primary aged pupils.
The total number of all academies will rise to 162 (44.6%) and 68,760 (65.1%) pupils will
attend those academies.
Six other schools are currently in process to become convertor or sponsored academies.
Below is a list of the academy trusts that currently have the greatest number of academies
in Lincolnshire.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

Lincoln Anglican Academy Trust
Community Inclusive Trust
The Priory Federation of Academies
The Boston Witham Academies Federation
The David Ross Education Trust
Greenwood Academies Trust
CFBT Schools Trust
St Gilbert of Sempringham Academies Trust
The Lincolnshire Educational Trust Limited
Tollbar Multi Academy Trust

Total
11
9
9
8
8
6
5
5
4
4

There are thirty-four active multi-academy trusts within Lincolnshire and a total of 109
Lincolnshire academies that are members of multi-academy trusts. This represents 68.8%
of all Lincolnshire Academies. Forty-seven (30.1%) of Lincolnshire academies are not
members of multi-academy trusts. Ten multi-academy trusts have just one Lincolnshire
academy as a member; four of these are single Lincolnshire academy multi-academy
trusts. The other six also have academies that are not within Lincolnshire. Twelve multiacademy trusts have two academies; ten of these trusts are currently based entirely within
Lincolnshire.
The largest academy trusts nationally that operate within Lincolnshire are Academies
Enterprise Trust (60 Academies, two in Lincolnshire), The David Ross Education Trust (35
Academies, eight in Lincolnshire), Greenwood Academies Trust (32 Academies, six in
Lincolnshire) and The Enquire Learning Trust (26 Academies, one in Lincolnshire). The
next largest is L.E.A.D. Multi-Academy Trust which has 25 Academies nationally, three of
which are in Lincolnshire. There are sixty-four academy trusts in Lincolnshire that have
less than four schools.

Page 49

Consultation
a) Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out??
No
b) Risks and Impact Analysis
N/A

Background Papers

This report was written by Adrian Clarke, who can be contacted on 01522 553216
or adrian.clarke@lincolnshire.gov.uk.

Page 50

Agenda Item 12
Lincolnshire Schools' Forum Work Programme
26 June 2018
Section 251 Budget
Statement 2018/19

Elizabeth Bowes

To provide an update to the
Schools' Forum regarding
the Budget Statement for
2018/19

Corporate Support Service
Programme

Andrew Mclean

To provide an update on the
Corporate Support Service

Schools Outreach Services
Update

Mary Meredith, Jonas
Gibson and Kate Capel

To provide an update on the
Outreach Commissioned
Services

De-delegation of Maintained
Primary Schools Budgets

Mark Popplewell

To seek approval from the
maintained primary school
representatives approval to
the Local authority's
proposals

Academies Update

John O'Connor

To provide the Schools'
Forum with an update on the
latest position regarding the
number of Maintained
Schools and Academies and
the pupils in them

Lincolnshire Schools' Forum
– Work Programme

Katrina Cope

To provide the Schools'
Forum with an opportunity to
discuss potential items for
future meetings, which will
be subsequently, included on
the Work Programme

Future Meeting Dates

Katrina Cope

For the Schools Forum to
agree their future meeting
dates

Page 51

11 October 2018
National funding formula for
Schools – update for
2019/20

Mark Popplewell

To provide the Schools'
Forum with an update on the
mainstream school funding

School Funding Update

Mark Popplewell

To provide an update on
school funding arrangements

Early Years National funding
Formula

Mark Popplewell / Michelle
Andrews

To provide the Schools'
Forum with an update on the
proposed 2019/20 funding
formula following provider
consultation (e.g. deprivation
funding).

Revised Schools Budgets
2018/19

Mark Popplewell

To provide information on
the revised Schools Budget
for 2018/19 and to seek
support for the proposed use
of the DSG underspend

Alternative Provision
Arrangements

Mary Meredith

To provide an update on how
alternative provision
arrangements are working

Schools Broadband Services

tbc

To receive an update on the
Schools Broadband Services
post October 2019

Academies Update

John O'Connor

To provide the Schools'
Forum with an update on the
latest position regarding the
number of Maintained
Schools and Academies and
the number pupils in them

Lincolnshire Schools' Forum
– Work Programme

Katrina Cope

To provide the Schools'
Forum with an opportunity to
discuss potential items for
future meetings, which will
be subsequently, included on
the Work Programme

Page 52

